
Regional Investment Initiative – Implementation Phase FAQ #4 

Posted on November 21, 2025 
 

• Are awards contingent on state budgetary funding? 

Yes. The awarded projects will begin prepping for the contracting process in spring 
2026, but final contracts will be dependent upon the approval of the FY2026-27 
state budget.  

• Will you provide links to the pitch decks from the awardees from Round 1? 

Presentation decks can be found here on the GO-Biz website.  

• What happens if two clusters merge? Who should submit? 

That is a decision to be made between the two clusters that are consolidating.  The 
lead applicant will be responsible for completing the Pre-Application webform.  

The lead applicant for the project cluster being submitted for the Pre-Application 
should be one of the original lead applicants as listed on the public notice of NOIs. 

• Does each project have a 300-word limit, or each cluster?  

The answer or response for each question of the Pre-Application should be 300 
words or less. 

• When will we hear back on the pre-application? In other words, how much time 
should we anticipate having to work on the full application? 

It is anticipated the scoring of Pre-Applications will be completed quickly with 
invitations to submit a Full Application distributed the week of December 8th.  
Please do not wait to begin building out narratives for full applications.   

• Considering the A&D sector is not just concentrated in one region in CA but 
rather we have so many unique strengths in various regions, can we have multi-
county partnerships? Does that strengthen the application? 

Project clusters can be formed within a single region or across multiple regions. 
There is not any evaluation advantage for a multi-region project cluster, however 
any regions included will need to submit an affirmation letter committing to 
participating in the implementation of projects within the cluster.   

https://business.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/California-Jobs-First-Round-I-Awardee-Presentation-Decks_September-2025.pdf


• Please tell us more about how you would like us to demonstrate the coalition, 
in particular those who are rallying around the project(s) but not directly 
involved in the implementation period.   

Regional or cross regional coalitions are outlined on page 5 of the Implementation 
Phase RFP.   

• Will it be helpful to have letters of support for the full application? From whom? 

General letters of support will not be considered for the Full Application. The Pre-
Application requires a confirmation letter from the Regional Convenor(s) that the 
target sector aligns with regional strategy (see page 6 of the Implementation Phase 
RFP). The partnership letters are a requirement of the Full Application should the 
project cluster advance to the next round. Details of the partnership letter will be 
included in the Full Application packet distributed to project clusters that advance.  

• If there is a clean economy cluster focused on ZEV and another cluster on Solar 
+ Battery Storage, were they to be in the same region would you still 
recommend that they combine? Or should they stay focused on distinct 
tradable sectors. 

Multiple sub-sectors from within the Accelerate and Bet categories may combine 
within a macro-sector. 

• Can you be funded to bridge, create a regional pipeline, connect, or expand an 
existing funded cluster? 

Projects within a project cluster need to be ready to go.  

• Are the guidelines for the letters of commitments available? Just thinking about 
the time from submission of the pre-application to when the letters are due in 
January. 

This will be provided in the Full Application. The partnership letters are a 
requirement of the Full Application should the project cluster advance to the next 
round. Details of the partnership letter will be included in the Full Application 
packet distributed to project clusters that advance. 

• Can you explain the email that is also due for the pre-application in addition to 
the proposal portal submission. 

The Pre-Application form is to be submitted via the webform. Only the Convenor 
letter(s) will be accepted via email to regionalinvestment@gobiz.ca.gov.  

mailto:regionalinvestment@gobiz.ca.gov


• How much detail are you looking for with the budget and implementation 
timeline request given that this is only the pre-questionnaire and the limited 
word count? 

Refer to the questions outlined in the Implementation Phase RFP on page 19.  

• What are the allowable indirect costs for this grant? Can some projects in a 
cluster have indirect costs and some not have indirect costs? 

Indirect dollars (administrative costs) may not exceed 10% of the total award.  

• Is the scoring rubric available? Is each question weighted equally? 

Refer to the scoring rubric outlined in the Implementation Phase RFP on page 19. 

• Does it make your project less attractive or more attractive if some of the 
budget is allocated to an economic study and future benchmarking of success 
of the cluster? 

Projects within a project cluster need to be ready to go for implementation. These 
are not planning or study projects.  

• Will all questions/answers be visible to non-asking entities? 

Yes, they will be posted on the GO-Biz website. 

• Considering we are focusing on another segment within aerospace and defense 
(shipbuilding), would it still be acceptable to have a career pathways 
component as part of our cluster? For additional context, funding components 
of our cluster include infrastructure investments to increase training capacity 
for the shipbuilding sector, paid internships at SMEs within the defense 
innovation economy, and upskilling/reskilling programs.   

Proposed projects should consider modeling/integrating into an application a 
career pathway program that has previously been funded.  Or consider expanding 
an existing pathway model, avoiding duplication of pathways already funded and in 
operation from around the state.    

• Can we change our sector focus in the pre-application? We chose high tech 
instead of advanced and precision manufacturing because it appeared that 
was a meta-category that included other sectors. 

No.  

• Please confirm the Round 1 award list. 



Awardees from Round 1 were announced in August 2025 via this press release. 

• How much detail should be provided in the budget response? Are total 
numbers for each project sufficient, or are specific line items preferred? 

Answers for the Pre-Application must be 300 words or less per question. Refer to 
the instructions outlined in the Implementation Phase RFP on page 19. 

• Are applicants able to change their total budget amount between the pre-
application submission and the full application submission? 

Yes.  

• Will the full application questions be provided in advance so we can prepare 
materials ahead of the pre application results announcement? 

The Full Application will be provided based on the results of the Pre-Application 
scoring. 

• Are activities that engage elected officials and government agencies, but do not 
include lobbying related activities allowable? 

Deliverables that will be defined as part of a project’s budget will need to be 
verified. If these deliverables include public meetings, rosters of attendance will be 
required.   

• Are we able to expand the project regions to include additional regions across 
the state? 

Yes, project clusters can be formed in a single region or across multiple regions that 
advance the growth of a single tradable sector.  

• Will there be an opportunity to provide a visual graphic at the full application 
phase, either as an additional attachment or otherwise? 

The Full Application has defined exhibits required to be submitted in Word format. 

• Regarding competitive procurement for subcontractors, if a City follows its 
internal procurement policies and determines that, based on scope of work, an 
RFP is not required (opting instead for an RFQ or a formal partnership approved 
by City Council) would this approach meet the program’s procurement 
requirements? Alternatively, are there additional state-level procurement 
policies or procedures the City must also follow in this case? 

https://jobsfirst.ca.gov/california-awards-80-million-to-drive-economic-growth-and-spur-job-creation-across-the-state/


Subcontracting and procurement guidelines are outlined in the Implementation 
Phase RFP on page 13. 

• Is a state program an eligible “project lead” where the lead entity remains a 
nonprofit organization for Implementation Round 2? 

One lead applicant is required to submit the Pre-Application project cluster. If the 
project cluster advances, each project will require a project proponent lead 
applicant. 

• Within the regional cluster of 3-8 projects, can a single project combine 
infrastructure and workforce? Or is it required to have two discrete 
infrastructure-only and workforce development only projects? 

Each project cluster must contain at least two of the four project categories. 

• Can we use this grant funding to complete a CEQA process? If we have 
architectural plans, engineering plans, and permits secured, and just need 
money to do CEQA, is that allowable cost, if implementation will be complete 
within the grant period? 

No. This grant program is intended to fund ready to go projects. Refer to the 
Implementation Phase RFP. 

• What constitutes shovel ready and when is it meant to be shovel ready by? 

Ready to go projects that can be completed within the 24-month period of 
performance. Refer to page 7 of the Implementation Phase RFP. 

• Can you share more about what should be included in the Regional Convenor 
Confirmation Letter(s)? 

See the criteria outlined in the Implementation Phase RFP on page 6. 

• We co-lead a Catalyst funded project in one of the target sectors. How can we 
help ensure that any proposals seeking to serve that same sector in our region 
are coordinating and additive to the work that our existing collaborative is 
investing in?  

Please review the publicly listed NOI to identify potential project clusters that may 
align with your Catalyst project.  

• Could you please confirm the process for sending the letter of alignment for 
these newly added sectors? Could we simply provide a letter without updating 



the regional plan? What if the regional plan does not mention a new sector, but 
our region would like to prioritize it? 

The alignment letters submitted by regional convenors should confirm the region 
has data and rationale for targeting newly added sectors and are adding to their 
regional strategy. 

• Can an organization be a part of two cluster applications in the same region? An 
example is an organization that is listed on both the High-Tech and Life 
Sciences clusters, but for different programs that fall under their organization's 
umbrella. 

An organization can be a partner within multiple cluster applications (as part of the 
coalition). However, an organization may only be the lead applicant for one project 
across all clusters.  

• Can Implementation Funds be utilized for Entrepreneurship Accelerator or 
Capital Investment Funds? 

Yes. 

• Several members noted that Artificial Intelligence should be an Accelerate 
rather than a Bet. Can they submit their proposed Artificial Intelligence 
projects under the Accelerate rather than the Bet category? 

No, artificial intelligence is a sub-sector of High Tech under Bet. See the placemat 
on the Economic Blueprint. 

• It was also noted that several sectors in the High-Tech cluster are tightly 
interwoven (i.e., Software & Services and Artificial Intelligence). Is it possible to 
combine High-Tech sectors that are complementary, so that our pre-
application meets the requirements of all projects being a part of one tradeable 
sector? 

Yes.  

• Can we combine closely aligned sectors that are in the separate categories 
(Software in Accelerate and Artificial Intelligence in Bet) into a single 
application under the Accelerate category? 

Subsectors from the Accelerate and Bet categories may be combined into a macro-
sector project cluster application. 

https://business.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/Economic_Blueprint_Placemat.pdf


• Will information about each of the projects and the lead entities be made 
available publicly following the pre-application period? Or will that information 
be withheld? 

No. A list of lead entities for Pre-Applications and Full Applications will not be made 
public. The selection of awardees will be the next public announcement.  

• Can only the entities that submitted an NOI can be bundled together into a 
cluster proposal? 

No. Being a project cluster lead applicant does not mean that they will be, or have 
to be, a “project” lead – rather, they are serving as the consolidator, organizer, 
coordinator, etc. of the projects they are pulling together for the cluster.  The project 
cluster lead applicant will be the one submitting the Pre-Application web-form.  

 

 

 

 

 




